
 

Date posted:  August 30, 2021 

 

 

 

FINANCE SUB-COMMITTEE: 
Taskforce on Critical Infrastructure Financing 

 

AGENDA 
 

August 31, 2021, at 1:30pm 
via Zoom 

 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81737152017?pwd=N3Q0VnR4U05seEcyL1BSR2x6Ylp1QT09 

 

Meeting ID: 817 3715 2017 

Passcode: 278010 

 

Dial by your location 

        833 548 0276 US Toll-free        877 853 5247 US Toll-free 

        833 548 0282 US Toll-free        888 788 0099 US Toll-free 

 

 

1. Approve minutes of August 10 meeting. 

2. Update on financing costs and tax rates – Jim Fabian, Municipal Financial Advisor. 

3. Update on potential legal considerations of Charter City – Jim Lynch, invited guest & 

Councilmember. 

4. Proposition 19 implications – Sally Wilkinson, Taskforce Chair. 

5. Status of polling effort – Craig Middleton, City Manager. 

6. Other. 

7. Adjourn. 

 

Attachments: 

A. California RPTT Election History 

B. Documentary and Property Transfer Tax Rates 

C. Prop 19 Information  

D. City of Emeryville Charter  

 
NOTICE:  WHERE TO VIEW AGENDA MATERIALS 

Staff reports and other writings distributed to the Committee, including those distributed after the posting 
date of this agenda, are available for public inspection at Belvedere City Hall, 450 San Rafael Avenue, 
Belvedere.  (Writings distributed to the City Council after the posting date of this agenda are available for 

 

CITY OF BELVEDERE 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81737152017?pwd=N3Q0VnR4U05seEcyL1BSR2x6Ylp1QT09


 

Date posted:  August 30, 2021 

public inspection at this location only.) To request automatic mailing of agenda materials, please contact 
the City Clerk at 415/435-8908. 

 

 NOTICE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

The following accommodations will be provided, upon request, to persons with a disability: agendas 
and/or agenda packet materials in alternate formats and special assistance needed to attend or 
participate in this meeting.  Please make your request at the Office of the Finance Officer or by calling 
415/435-3838.  Whenever possible, please make your request four working days in advance. 
 
 

 



SPECIAL MEETING 
FINANCE SUB-COMMITTEE 

Taskforce on Critical Infrastructure Financing 
August 10, 2021, at 1:00 PM 

Belvedere City Hall – Council Chambers 
and on Zoom remote platform 

  
MINUTES 

 

 
COMMITTEE PRESENT: Bob McCaskill, Sally Wilkinson, John Wilton, 

Greg Ostroff 
 
COMMITTEE ABSENT: N/A 
  
STAFF PRESENT:   City Manager – Craig Middleton,  

Admin. Services Manager – Amber Johnson 
Bond Counsel – Brian Forbath, Stradling Law 

 
GUESTS/PUBLIC PRESENT: Jim Lynch, Jerry Butler 
 
CALL TO ORDER OF SPECIAL MEETING 
 
The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
SCHEDULED ITEMS 
 

1. The Taskforce appointed Sally Wilkinson as its Chair. 
2. The Taskforce discussed the background and relevant issues around the City’s 

Critical Infrastructure project financing.  It was agreed that a municipal financial 
advisory firm and political research firm should be engaged by the City to help 
inform this decision-making process.  Additional information was requested on the 
legal aspects of becoming a charter city, administration and collection of a potential 
real property transfer tax, and potential implications of Prop 19. 
 

ADJOURN 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 
 
THE FOREGOING MINUTES were approved at a regular meeting of the Finance 
Committee on August 31, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Bob McCaskill, Sally Wilkinson, John Wilton, Greg Ostroff 
 
NOES: none 
ABSENT: none 



ABSTAIN: none 
 
      APPROVED ____________________ 
                Sally Wilkinson, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST __________________________________ 
       Amber Johnson, Director of Admin. Services 



Recent California City Real Property Transfer Tax Measures
2016 to August 31, 2021
(Affirmative Vote Requirement: 50% plus 1 vote)

Tax
Election

Date County City
Proposed

Tax Ballot Question
Expiration

Date
Yes Votes

(%)
Result
(Y/N)

Link to Full Text
of Ballot Measure 

11/3/2020 Alameda Albany Increase tax from $11.50 to $15 
per $1,000 of real property

To support City of Albany general services, with funding that 
cannot be taken by Sacramento, including: emergency response 
services, environmental programs, community services and local 
business programs, shall a measure increasing the City's real 
property transfer tax rate from $11.50 to $15.00 per $1,000 
purchased, providing an additional $392,000 annually, until ended 
by voters, with all funds remaining local be adopted?

Until ended by 
voters

56.38% Y https://www.albanyca.org
/home/showdocument?id
=45302

11/3/2020 Alameda Piedmont Increase tax from $13 to $17.50 
per $1,000 of real property

Shall the City of Piedmont, to be in alignment with neighboring 
East Bay Cities, increase the real estate transfer tax from $13.00 
to $17.50 per $1,000 of transfer price, generating $948,462 
annually until ended by voters, to provide general tax revenue for 
city services and to repair and maintain city facilities including 
police and fire stations, parks, and recreation facilities, and other 
city infrastructure, be adopted?

Until ended by 
voters

47.82% N https://piedmont.ca.gov/
UserFiles/Servers/Server_
13659739/File/Governme
nt/Departments/City%20
Clerk/Elections/2020-11-
03%20General%20Munici
pal/TT-Full-Text.pdf

11/3/2020 Los Angeles Culver City Increase flat tax rate of 0.45% 
($4.50) to:
$4.50 for $1,499,999 or less
$15 for $1.5M to $2,999,999
$30 for $3M to $9,999,999
$40 for $10M and more
$4.50 for all affording housing 
property

Shall the measure to maintain essential services, including 
deferred parks/facilities/street maintenance, addressing 
homelessness, after-school/senior services, and economic 
recovery, by increasing the one-time 0.45% tax on real property 
sales, adding 1.5% on amounts from $1,500,000 to $2,999,999, 
3% on amounts from $3,000,000 to $9,999,999, and 4% on 
amounts $10,000,000 and above, except for sales under 
$1,500,000, affordable housing, and first transfer of new multi-
family properties, and providing $6,000,000 annually until 
repealed, be adopted?

Until repealed 
by voters

51.89% Y Not available

11/3/2020 San 
Francisco

San Francisco Increase tax to $55 for real 
property and leases of 35 years or 
more valued $10M to $25M, and
to $60 for $25M or more

Shall the City permanently increase the transfer tax rate on sales 
and leases of 35 years or more of real estate, to 5.50% on those 
transactions of $10 million to $25 million, and to 6.00% on those 
transactions of $25 million or more, for an estimated average 
revenue of $196 million a year?

Ongoing 57.55% Y https://sfelections.sfgov.o
rg/sites/default/files/Doc
uments/candidates/2020
Nov/20200717_RealPrope
rtyTransferTaxRateIncreas
e.pdf

11/6/2018 Alameda Berkeley Increase tax from 1.5% ($15) to 
2.5% ($25) for real property over 
$1.5M

Shall ordinance raising funds for general municipal purposes such 
as navigation centers, mental health support, rehousing and other 
services for the homeless, including homeless seniors and youth; 
increasing the real property transfer tax for ten years from 1.5% 
to 2.5% for property sales and transfers over $1,500,000, adjusted 
annually to capture the top approximately 33% of transfers; 
generating an estimated $6,000,000 - $8,000,000 annually; and 
establishing Homeless Services Panel of Experts to recommend 
homeless services, be adopted?

10 Years 72.37% Y https://www.acvote.org/a
cvote-
assets/02_election_inform
ation/PDFs/20181106/en
/Measures/12%20-
%20Measure%20P%20-
%20City%20of%20Berkel
ey.pdf

Election Results

Source: Ballotpedia.org
Table prepared by Fieldman, Rolapp Associates, Inc. 1 of 2

ATTACHMENT A



Recent California City Real Property Transfer Tax Measures
2016 to August 31, 2021
(Affirmative Vote Requirement: 50% plus 1 vote)

Tax
Election

Date County City
Proposed

Tax Ballot Question
Expiration

Date
Yes Votes

(%)
Result
(Y/N)

Link to Full Text
of Ballot Measure 

Election Results

11/6/2018 Alameda Hayward Increase tax from $4.50 per $1,000 
to $8.50 per $1,000 of real property

To support City of Hayward services, with revenue that cannot 
be taken by the State, including: repairing streets and sidewalks; 
911 emergency and response times; neighborhood police patrols; 
disaster preparedness; extended library hours and after-school 
programs: and unrestricted general revenue purposes; shall 
Hayward increase the rate of its real property transfer tax, 
collected once upon purchase of real estate, from $4.50 to $8.50 
per $1,000, providing $13,000,000 annually, until repealed by 
voters, all funds benefitting Hayward?

Until repealed 
by voters

59.21% Y https://www.acvote.org/a
cvote-
assets/02_election_inform
ation/PDFs/20181106/en
/Measures/16%20-
%20Measure%20T%20-
%20City%20of%20Haywa
rd.pdf

11/6/2018 Alameda Oakland Increase flat tax of $15 to:
$10 up to $300k
$15 from $300K to $2M
$17.50 from $2M to $5M
$25 over $5M

Shall the Measure graduating the real estate transfer tax as 
follows: 1% up to $300,000; 1.5% over $300,000 - 2,000,000; 
1.75% over $2,000,000 - 5,000,000 and 2.5% over $5,000,000; a 
lower rate for low-moderate income first-time homebuyers; and 
reducing the tax up to 1/3 for seismic retrofit or solar energy 
work costs incurred by low-moderate income homebuyers; 
raising approximately $9,000,000 annually until repealed, be 
adopted?[

Until repealed 
by voters

69.48% Y https://www.acvote.org/a
cvote-
assets/02_election_inform
ation/PDFs/20181106/en
/Measures/20%20-
%20Measure%20X%20-
%20City%20of%20Oaklan
d.pdf

11/6/2018 Alameda Union City Adopt new tax of $10 per $1,000 
of real property

To enhance local control with funding that cannot be taken by 
the State for essential services including fire/police protection; 
youth violence/gang prevention programs; maintaining city 
parks/senior services; and other essential services; shall a 
measure be adopted establishing Union City as a Charter City and 
a real property transfer tax of $10 per $1,000, until ended by 
voters, paid only by property buyers/sellers, providing $5,000,000 
dollars annually, with funds benefiting Union City?

Until ended by 
voters

46.20% N https://www.acvote.org/a
cvote-
assets/02_election_inform
ation/PDFs/20181106/en
/Measures/27%20-
%20Measure%20EE%20-
%20City%20of%20Union
%20City.pdf

11/6/2018 Contra Costa El Cerrito Continue existing tax of $12 per 
$1,000

To better maintain emergency 911 fire, medical and police 
services and response times; city parks, paths, playfields, and 
open space; programs for children, adults, and families; library 
programs; earthquake and disaster preparedness programs and 
reserves; other general services, shall a measure be adopted 
establishing El Cerrito as a Charter City and an ongoing real 
estate property transfer tax of $12 per $1,000, paid by buyers or 
sellers of property, providing $2,700,000 annually, all benefiting 
El Cerrito?

Ongoing 54.47% Y https://www.cocovote.us
/wp-
content/uploads/Measure-
Wording-List-
00000003.pdf

11/6/2018 Contra Costa Richmond Increase flat tax rate of $7 to:
no increase for $0 to $999,999
$12.50 for $1M to $3M
$25 for $3M to $10M
$30 for $10M and more

Shall the Ordinance amending the City of Richmond’s Municipal 
Code, changing the Real Estate Documentary Transfer Tax so 
the tax rate for properties below $1 million does not increase, the 
rate for properties between $1 million to $3 million increases 
from .7% to 1.25%; the rate for properties between $3 million to 
$10 million increases from .7% to 2.5%; and the rate for 
properties over $10 million increases from .7% to 3.0%, be 
adopted?

Ongoing 64.89% Y https://www.cocovote.us
/wp-
content/uploads/Measure-
Wording-List-
00000003.pdf

11/8/2016 Contra Costa Richmond Increase tax rate from:
$7 to $12.50 over $1,000,000 and
to $25 for real property below 
$3,000,000; and to

Shall the Ordinance to amend the City of Richmond’s Municipal 
Code to increase the City’s Real Estate Documentary Transfer 
Tax from .7% to 1% and 1.5%, based on the property’s sale 
price, be adopted?

Ongoing 28.59% N Not available

Source: Ballotpedia.org
Table prepared by Fieldman, Rolapp Associates, Inc. 2 of 2

ATTACHMENT A



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



CaliforniaCityFinance.com

ATTACHMENT B



Prop 19
Impact on Housing Turnover and Assessed Values

1

ATTACHMENT C



Proposition 19

• Prop 19 – The Home Protection for Seniors, Severely Disabled, Families and Victims of 

Wildfire or Natural Disasters Act – was passed by CA citizens in November 2020. 

• It contains two key provisions:

• It places limits on the ability of children and grandchildren who inherit family property 

from maintaining the low property tax bases on those properties. 

• It allows homeowners over 55 years of age, or disabled, or victims of wildfire/natural 

disasters to transfer the assessed value of their primary home to a newly-purchased or 

newly-constructed replacement primary residence, up to three times.

2

ATTACHMENT C



Changes to Family-Based Exclusions

• Under prior law, a parent could transfer their principal residence of any value, and up to $1 

million of assessed value (per parent) in non-principal properties to their children without 

causing any property tax reassessments.

• Under Prop 19, the principal residence exclusion from reassessment only applies if the 

receiving child moves into the property as their primary residence. And there is only partial 

relief depending on the value of the property. A reassessment is triggered if the fair market 

value exceeds the current assessed value by more than $1 million. 

• Prop 19 eliminates entirely the exclusion from reassessment for non-principal residences. 

• Holding property in trust does not provide protection from these rules.

• New rules will likely increase housing turnover and assessed values, as beneficiaries can 

no longer afford to keep the properties they inherit, because of the increased property tax 

burden. This is particularly true in communities with high-value residences. 
3

ATTACHMENT C



4

ATTACHMENT C



Changes to Elderly, Disabled & Disaster 
Exclusions

• Prior law allowed homeowners over 55 and the severely disabled to transfer the assessed 

value of their existing home to a replacement home, provided the market value of the new 

home was equal to or less than the existing home's value.

• The program was limited to once in a lifetime and contained restrictions on where the 

replacement home was located. 

• Prop 19 makes the program more flexible, to include higher value replacement homes, as 

well as fewer location restrictions, and expands access to include those who have had their 

homes substantially damaged by wildfire or other disasters.

• New rules allow a larger cohort of people to transfer their tax bases, encouraging higher 

turnover, but potentially slowing the growth in assessed values.  

5

ATTACHMENT C



6

ATTACHMENT C



City Administration

Charter City

On November 4, 2014, the voters of Emeryville passed Measure U which established the City of Emeryville as a
charter city. The City was originally founded in 1896 as a general law city.

Charter cities, unlike general law cities, are authorized by the State Constitution to govern themselves in matters
considered to be municipal affairs. When a city is incorporated as or later becomes a charter city, the electorate
essentially adopts a municipal “constitution” or charter that grants and/or limits the city’s powers related to
municipal affairs, such as but not limited to, certain taxation authority, local elections, local campaign financing,
and contracting. General law cities do not have the authority to establish any powers relating to municipal affairs
that are different than what is granted by the laws of the State of California.

The Emeryville City Charter approved by the voters of Emeryville specifically establishes that the City’s new
powers over municipal affairs will be limited solely to municipal revenue, including taxation and assessment, and
a system for a real property transfer tax. These powers have historically been found by the State courts to be
municipal affairs. The Emeryville Charter states that in all other respects, the powers of the City shall remain as
they were previously and therefore shall be constrained by, subject to, and governed by the general laws of the
State of California

City of Emeryville Charter
 

ARTICLE I.  NAME AND BOUNDARIES 
Section 100. Name and Boundaries 
The municipal corporation now existing and known as the City of Emeryville, hereafter referred to as “the City”,
shall remain and continue to be a municipal body corporate and politic, as at present, in name, in fact, and in law. 
 

ARTICLE II.  POWERS OF C ITY 
Section 200. Exercise of Constitutional Power of Taxation 
The City of Emeryville adopts this Charter to exercise all constitutional powers conferred on cities under Article XI
Sections 7 and 5 of the California Constitution solely with respect to the powers over municipal affairs in relation
to municipal revenues including taxation and assessment, and a system for the imposition, levy and collection of
a tax on the conveyance of real property based on the value of the real property in addition to the amount
authorized by California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 11911. 
 
Section 201. Subject to General Laws 
Except as provided in this Charter with respect to the power of the City over municipal affairs in relation to
municipal revenues including taxation and assessment, the power to the City shall otherwise be constrained by,
subject to, and governed by the general laws of the State as now and hereafter existing relating to cities

ATTACHMENT D



organized under said general laws. 
 
Section 202. Severability 
If any provision of this Charter is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining provisions
of the Charter shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

ARTICLE III.  SUCCESSION 
Section 300. Rights and Liabilities 
The City shall remain vested with and continue to have, hold , and enjoy all property, rights of property, and rights
of action of ever nature and description now pertaining to this municipality, and is hereby declared to be the
successor of same. It shall be subject to all the obligations, contracts, liabilities, debt, and duties that now exist
against or with the City. 
 
Section 301. Ordinances, Codes, and Other Regulations 
All ordinances, codes, resolutions, regulations, rules, and portions thereof, in force at the time this Charter takes
effect, and not in conflict or inconsistent herewith, shall continue in force until repealed, amended, changed, or
superseded in the manner provided by this Charter and any other applicable laws. 
 
Section 302. Pending Actions and Proceedings 
No action or proceeding, civil or criminal, pending at the time this Charter takes effect, brought by or against the
City or any officer, office, or department thereof, shall be affected or abated by the adoption of this Charter, or by
anything herein contained. 
 

ARTICLE IV.  FORM OF GOVERNMENT 
Section 400. Form of Government 
The form of government shall be that commonly known as the Council-Manager form of government. The City
Council, consisting of five councilmembers elected at large for four year staggered terms, in the manner in effect
when this Charter was adopted, shall establish the policy of the City and the City Manager shall carry out that
policy.

CONTACT US

Christine Daniel
City Manager

Email
Phone: (510) 596-4371

More Information
 

Physical Address 
1333 Park Ave. 
Emeryville, CA 94608
 

Phone: (510) 450-7801
Fax: (510) 658-8095
 

ATTACHMENT D

https://www.ci.emeryville.ca.us/directory.aspx
mailto:cdaniel@emeryville.org
https://www.ci.emeryville.ca.us/directory.aspx?eid=200



